Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A RepE)r'Ei n.g -Se;vi.ce. fo-r I.En-vi ;oan;er;t and Ise:/el.of)rr;er;t Iile;\:]o.tia.\ti(.)ns
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/sp13/

Vol. 12 No. 147

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Tuesday, 12 September 2000

HIGHLIGHTSFROM FCCC SB-13

MONDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER 2000

On the opening day of thethirteenth sessions of the FCCC
subsidiary bodies (SB-13), del egates convened in the morning for
awelcoming ceremony and to address organizational matters. In
the afternoon, ajoint session of the Subsidiary Body for Imple-
mentation (SBI) and the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and Tech-
nological Advice (SBSTA) washeld, during which Parties made
genera statementsand addressed issuesrelating to adverse effects,
compliance, activitiesimplemented jointly (AlJ), the mechanisms,
and capacity building. In addition, SBSTA considered a number of
issues, including land use, land-use change and forestry
(LULUCEF), technology transfer, and policies and measures. A
contact group met to discuss capacity building and informal
consultationswere held on administrative and financial matters.

WELCOMING CEREMONY

COP-5 President Jan Szyszko (Poland) opened the meeting,
encouraging delegatesto ook for common ground and explore
compromisesin order to streamline negotiating texts and achieve
success at COP-6.

FCCC Executive Secretary Michael Zammit Cutajar drew
participants’ attention to two palitical challenges. the need to
support developing countriesin their response to climate change
impacts; and the importance of realizing the goals of the Protocol.
He cautioned against attemptsto renegotiate parts of the Protocol,
asthiswould result inits collapse. He al so expressed regret at the
passing away of two prominent figuresin climate change negotia-
tions: Jean Ripert of France, who chaired the Intergovernmental
Negotiating Committee that resulted in the adoption of the FCCC
in 1992; and Zhong Shukong, Special Advisor on Environmental
Issuesin China sMinistry of Foreign Affairs.

Raymond Barre, Mayor of the City of Lyon, expressed hishope
for asuccessful outcomefor SB-13. He noted the presence of
France's Prime Minister and Minister of Spatial Planning and
Environment asasign of the political and economic importance
attached to the work on climate change.

Lione Jospin, Prime Minister of France, hoted France’s active
support for early ratification of the Protocol. He stressed the
importance of domestic action asthe most important instrument to
reduce emissions, and said the mechanisms should be applicableto
no more than half of the efforts from each state. He al so expressed
caution over theinclusion of sinks. He urged devel oping countries
not to postpone action, and recommended expediti ous adoption of
the CDM. He stated that his Government’srecent measures to miti-
gatetheimpact of rising oil pricesdid not compromise France's
climate change programme.

SBI

Following the welcoming ceremony, SBI met briefly to adopt
its agenda and schedul e of work. SBI Chair John Ashe (Antigua &
Barbuda) noted that 184 parties had ratified the FCCC and 23 had
ratified or acceded to the Protocol.

SBSTA

SBSTA convened in both morning and evening sessions,
beginning by adopting its agenda and organization of work.

LULUCF: Informal group Co-Chair Gwage (Uganda) indi-
cated progress and expressed his desire for ashort negotiating text.
JAPAN opposed separating human-induced and natural effects,
while SWITZERLAND underscored that theintegrity of the
Protocol depends on their separation. BRAZIL, for the G-77/
CHINA, outlined itsprinciplesfor LULUCEF, including that
agreed-upon Annex | LULUCEF activities should not change the
global effect of the Protocol. The EU said additional activities
under Protocol Article 3.4 should not be applied during thefirst
commitment period unless concernsrelated to scale, uncertainties
and risks associated with sinks areresolved. CANADA expressed
confidence that these concerns can be met and, with JAPAN,
stressed inclusion of Article 3.4 activitiesin thefirst commitment
period asacondition for ratification of the Protocol. Discussions
will continue in acontact group.

IMPACT OF SINGLE PROJECTSON EMISSIONSIN
THE COMMITMENT PERIOD: Chair Dovland noted that no
submissions had been made by Parties on the matter by 17 July
2000, asrequested by SBSTA-11. Following statements by
ICELAND and other Annex | countries, he concluded that full
agreement had yet to be reached, and requested Ol e Plougmann
(Denmark) to conduct informal consultations on theissue.

OTHER METHODOL OGICAL MATTERS: Emissions
from bunker fuels: The Secretariat reported on cooperation with
ICAO andthe IMO, and on efforts within these organizationsto
identify optionsto limit and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
Chair Dovland noted their progress reports, asrequested by
SBSTA-11. The IMO introduced its study on greenhouse gasemis-
sionsfrom ships, which will beavailable at SBSTA-14.

Methodsand toolsfor vulnerability and adaptation assess-
ments: The Secretariat noted that aworkshop with IPCC experts
will beheld following the release of the IPCC report in April 2001.

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: The US emphasized the
importance of technology needs assessments and an integrated
approach. He urged the COP-6 decision to build on the recent tech-
nology cooperation pilot project and to consider futurerolesfor the
Climate Technology Initiative. INDONESIA highlighted the
importance of: monitoring and eval uating technol ogy transfer,
minimizing dumping of inefficient technologies, and developing a
clearinghouse for technology transfer. The EU urged that identifi-
cation of needs and priorities should be country-driven and region-

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Angela Churie <angela@iisd.org>, Jon Hanks <jon.hanks@iiiee.lu.se>, Lavanya
Rajamani <lavanya@iisd.org>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <chris@iisd.org> and Lisa Schipper <lisa@iisd.org>. The Digital Editor is Andrei Henry

<andrei @iisd.org>. The Photographer is Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 11SD Reporting
ServicesisLangston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government
of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFID), the European Commission (DG-ENV) and the Rockefeller Foundation. Genera Support for the Bulletin during 2000
isprovided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Devel opment Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, theMinistry of Environment and the Ministry of Foreign Affairsof Austria, theMinistriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministriesof Foreign
Affairsand Environment of Finland, the Government of Australia, and BP Amoco. Thisissuewas prepared in cooperation with the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can
be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage
Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily
reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate
academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are
sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca. The satelliteimage was taken above Lyon ©2000 The Living Earth,
Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Tuesday, 12 September 2000

Vol. 12 No. 147 Page 2

specific, and should identify priorities for both mitigation and
adaptation. With MALAY SIA, he underlined the importance of an
enabling environment in devel oped and devel oping countries, and
of using existing mechanisms. The REPUBL IC OF KOREA advo-
cated greater focus on supply-sideissues. Discussionswill
continuein acontact group.

BEST PRACTICESIN POLICESAND MEASURES
(P& Ms): The EU emphasized experience sharing and information
exchange, identifying opportunitiesfor cooperation and contrib-
uting to the assessment of demonstrable progress. CANADA, with
the USand JAPAN, emphasized that the Copenhagen workshop on
P&Msfulfilled relevant BAPA requirements. He urged avoiding
linkages with other issues, including demonstrabl e progress.
URUGUAY highlighted the possibleimpact of P& Mson devel-
oping countries. A contact group was established.

OTHER MATTERS: SBSTA also addressed Protocol Articles
5 (methodological issues), 7 (communication of information) and 8
(review of information). Group Co-Chair Helen Plume (New
Zealand) noted that substantial work remained. A contact group
was established to continue discussions. On cooperation with rele-
vant international organizations, the Secretariat noted recent coop-
erative work with the Convention on Biodiversity.

JOINT SBI/SBSTA

GENERAL STATEMENTS: Thejoint SBI/SBSTA began
with general statements by several Parties. The EUROPEAN
COMMISSION said the EU hoped COP-6 would ensure theratifi-
cation of the Pratocol for entry into force in 2002. She encouraged
strong consequencesin cases of non-compliance. FRANCE,
speaking for the EU, suggested that the momentum from Kyoto had
been lost. She urged each country to assumeitsresponsibility and
adopt emissions reduction measures.

NIGERIA, speaking for the G-77/CHINA, expressed concern
that developed countrieswere not engaging in meaningful FCCC
implementation. He stressed the importance of taking comprehen-
sivedecisionson al issues. The AFRICA GROUP noted concerns
with availability of translated documents, the convening of too
many meetings and rigid positionstaken by developed countries.
VENEZUELA said developed countries should not avoid commit-
ments or attempt to transfer commitmentsto devel oping countries.
INDONESIA stressed theimportance of capacity building, adapta-
tion, Annex | domestic action, and technology transfer.

ADVERSE EFFECTS: On FCCC Article4.8 and 4.9 and
Protocol Article 3.14 (adverse effects), Chair Dovland noted that
negotiating text had been prepared based on informal consultations
held in August and last week. Group Co-Chair Abdulmohsen Al
Sunaid (Saudi Arabia) noted progress, but drew attention to
disagreements over whether to have two decisionsthat address
FCCC Article 4.8 and 4.9 and Protocol Article 3.14 separately, or
one decision dealing with both.

The G-77/CHINA called for thewill toimplement “long
overdue” actionson FCCC Article4.8 and 4.9 at COP-6 and,
supported by SAUDI ARABIA, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, and
JAMAICA, called for two separate decisions. The EU said it was
aware of the importance of theseissuesfor devel oping countries,
particularly least developed countries and, with the US, supported
one decision. The US added that progress had been made and he
remained optimistic. Discussionswill continuein acontact group.

ACTIVITIESIMPLEMENTED JOINTLY: Onactivities
implemented jointly under the pilot phase, the Secretariat presented
areport indicating, inter alia, better regional and technical distribu-
tion of projects, improved quality of reporting and strengthened
capacity in host countries. It was al so noted that arevised uniform
reporting format was available.

CHINA, with SAUDI ARABIA, EGYPT and TUNISIA, high-
lighted the need to extend the pilot phase and ensure greater
geographical balancein projects. With the USand CANADA, he
suggested that the revised uniform reporting format be discussed at
SBSTA-14. HUNGARY suggested that the Al1J experience should

be used to implement JI, and the EU said it could be used to elabo-
ratethe CDM Reference Manual. She added that crediting for
projects should only be possible after the Protocol comesinto
effect. Parties agreed to discussthe AlJ pilot phase and the revised
uniform reporting format at SBSTA-14.

MECHANI SM S: On mechanisms, the Secretariat presented
the documents and Chair Chow outlined the state of deliberations
on thetext. Highlighting the slow pace of discussions,
AUSTRALIA said it would only ratify the Protocol if therewasa
workable package at COP-6. The G-77/CHINA highlighted the
need to address equity, nature and scope, supplementarity and
cross-cutting issues. Opposed by CANADA, he said the decisions
on the three mechanisms should have three different chapeaus.
Discussionswill continuein the contact group.

Delegates al so briefly addressed mattersrelating to compliance
and to capacity building, referring theseissuesto contact groups.

INFORMAL MEETINGS AND CONTACT GROUPS

CAPACITY BUILDING: The contact group considered the
framework for capacity building in EITsand in devel oping coun-
tries, and began consideration of aproposed draft decision on
capacity buildingin EITs.

Regarding EITs, issues discussed included: the need for
capacity building to assist in achieving the overall objectives of the
Convention and Protocol; whether consideration of progresson
capacity building relating to the Protocol should be referred to the
COP/MOP; and who should monitor progress. CANADA stressed
€elaborating the concept of an enabling environment to ensurethat it
doesnot imply delaysin initiating capacity building activities.
SLOVENIA introduced aproposal for adraft decision calling for a
prompt start to capacity building in EITs, and a COP decision to
initiate the creation of the framework for capacity building.

Regarding aframework for non-Annex | country capacity
building, participants sought clarity on, inter alia, how to monitor
implementation, whether there should be coherencein the frame-
worksfor EITsand devel oping countries, the role of national focal
points, and how GEF could be involved in the implementation of
theframework.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL MATTERS: In
informal consultations, the US, with the RUSSIAN FEDERA -
TION, addressed the issue of |ate payment of dues, seeking infor-
mation on existing practicesin other UN fora. Speaking for several
developing countries, IRAN asked for a postponement of the
discussion until COP-6, and ARGENTINA added that the options
included were unacceptable. The US stated that 89% of dues had
been collected thisyear, while the Secretariat noted that, although
thiswas correct, one-third of Parties had not yet paid. Chair
Mahmoud Ould El Ghaouth (Mauritania) said he would transmit to
SBI the recommendation that the issue be discussed at COP-6.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates have been discussing rumors about apossible deal
under negotiation between certain devel oped country groups.
Whilethe detail s remain hazy, some specul ation centered around
an agreement on parts of the text relating to the mechanisms, while
others suggested the agreement may incorporate awider package
deal. Observers suggest such amove, which would marginalize
developing countries, could provoke abacklash in the negotiations.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

SBI: SBI will conveneat 10:00 amin Plenary | to consider the
venue of COP-7, administrative and financial matters, national
communications, and the financial mechanism.

CONTACT GROUPS: A number of contact groupswill meet
to begin negotiations on the newly-revised draft negotiating texts.
Negotiationswill address: policiesand measures, Articles5, 7 and
8, compliance, the mechanisms, technology transfer, adverse
effectsand LULUCEF. Check the noticeboard for details.



